



**Southside Area Service  
Danville, VA  
Sunday August 4, 2019**



Meeting opened with the Serenity Prayer at 2 pm

12 Traditions read by: Jimmy

12 Concepts read by: Jesse

Purpose read by: Barb S.

**Open forum for 15 minutes:** Literature order for August was never received. Jeanine will call Free State and clear up any discrepancies. Kim will email Home Groups regarding their literature order. Discussed possibly changing the time of Area Service meeting due to lack of participation, nothing was decided on this matter.

Roll Call by Secretary

<b>Trusted Servant</b>	<b>Name</b>	<b>Present/Not Present</b>
Chair	Kim A.	present
Vice Chair	Paul	absent
Treasurer	Jeanine	present
Co-Treasurer	Vacant	vacant
Secretary	Barb	present
RCM	Sue N.	present
Alt RCM	Helen	absent
H&I Chair	Helen	absent
PR Chair	Cameron	present
Literature	Tiffany	present
Policy	Mike	present
Activities	Vacant	vacant

## Home groups

<b>Name</b>	<b>Representative</b>
1. A New Beginning	Dee / present
2. A New Hope	Krista / present
3. Gretna NA Group	absent
4. Living Clean The Journey Continues	Jeanine / present
5. Never Alone, Never Again	Cameron / present
6. New Attitudes	Sharon / present
7. New Beginnings	absent
8. New Vision	Mike / present
9. Not A Good Day for Relapse	Jerry / present
10 Recovering Renegades	absent
11. Recovering Vigilantes	Nancy S. / present
12. Solutions W/ Serenity	Scottie / present
13. Spiritual Principles	absent
14. Step into Serenity	Sue N. / present
15. Steps to Freedom	Tiffany / present
16. Steps to Recovery	Barb / present
17. Stick & Stay	Jenny / present
18. Survivors	Lawson / present
19. We do Recover	Jimmy / present

**Review of minutes for October:** Motion to approve by Dee, seconded by Jeanine.  
12/0/0 approved

## **Executive Body Reports**

### **Chair**

Chair report

Submitted October's literature order after trying to discern where we are at financially with Free State. It appears we have a credit in the amount of a little over \$51.00.

Attended Chili cook off and brought the \$65.00 proceeds to the Area for the treasurer. Only two groups submitted chili's.

All positions are open in January and nominations and volunteers need to be brought back to groups this month. Policy says: elections take place in January.

### **Co-Chair**

No report

### **RCM**

Report for November

Hello family. At the October meeting 9 out of 16 areas were present. Open positions are vice treasurer, policy chair, and H and I. Antoinette was nominated for vice chair at a previous meeting and elected 8-0-0.

There will be CAR-CAT meetings beginning in February in each quadrant. We are in quadrant 3 so our meeting will be March 7, 2020. Location to be determined. The Autonomy Zonal meeting will be January 26-27 in Charlottesville, Va at UVA. NAWS Annual report is available on NA.org website. Contents include WCNA finances, basic financial statements and overview, NA World Services Staffing, Fellowship development, literature sales and distribution fellowship donations by zones, regions, etc. The English CAR will be available for sale on November 26 for \$13.50 and shipping. Taxes are not included. The AVCNA convention will be at Virginia Beach Convention Center Jan10-12. Rooms will be available at Double Tree Inn in Virginia Beach. Each area received soft basic texts-7. The next H and I subcommittee meeting will be November 16. The location to be announced or attend via zoom. The new website is up and running at <https://centralatlanticregionofna.org/>. They set up a Yap number for testing. The phone number is 540-277-9265. The areas have their existing phone line volunteers listed. Our area calls will be forward to our phone line HELPLINE 4347094016.

**Motion: 196-6:** Mover: RD team 2<sup>nd</sup> Micheal L. Survey Monkey was used to improve our ability to take the conscience of the members at the region directly and efficiently during the regional planning process. Money matter: Intent: to provide the funds necessary to allow multiuser use of survey monkey. Motion: to budget \$900.00 for the purchase of a one year three user subscription to survey monkey which will provide us with the technological capability to directly take the conscience of the CARNA region. Pro: money spent may allow better access to members not participating in service structure to get their conscience. Back to groups.

**Motion 196-2:** For any regional event/ workshop being held in all four quadrants of the region (ie CAR, CAT, strategic planning) that the RCM's of the particular quadrant be included in the decision making as to which area will host the event. If more than one area is interested in hosting the event and has a location that meets the required criteria for meeting space, ie WiFi, ect. That a ballot drawing be performed at the Regional Service Conference. Intent: To allow the RCM to have a voice as to what area hosts regional events for unity and inclusion and to honor the 12<sup>th</sup> tradition and eliminate possible principle over personalities perception. Mover: Almost heaven 2<sup>nd</sup>: Roland C. No pro's no con's. 6/0/1 Back to groups.

Next regional meeting will be Dec. 21, 2019.

Thanks for the opportunity to serve ; In loving service Sue N.

### **Available Regional Commitments and Elections - Home Groups must vote on Vice Chair**

1-**Vice treasurer:** Open (since 173rd) no nominees at 198.

2-**Policy chair:** -No nominations.

3-**H&I:** - No nominations

4-**Vice chair:** Antionette B (pro temp) was **nominated** by Joe 2nd by Roland

**Qualification:** My clean date May 6 2004 I have a sponsor who has a sponsor. i am a twelve step member and I been in service since I became a member 1-5 yrs. on the Group & Area Service with following posi-

tions: Coffee maker, Greeter/ Hugger, Treasurer, Secretary, GSR, RCM I & II , Speaker Jam Chair & Policy Chair . I am willing to continue to serve the Region as Vice-Chair. In Loving Service,  
Antoinette B

**Pro's 1-** For all the qualifications reasons expressed by the nominee I believe she is the most knowledgeable and experience person for the position.

**2-** Very detailed and articulate

**Con- 1-**Attendance at required meetings while Policy Chair appears to have been more than “rare,” as described in the candidate’s statement of qualifications. Vote 8/0/0

## RCM2

No report

## Treasurer

SOUTHSIDE AREA BUDGET REPORT 2019													
Summary	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Year's Total
Opening Bank Balance	802.60	1019.75	1009.64	1299.99	1313.90	1320.85	991.60	940.36	955.03	967.88	890.35		
<b>Total Income</b>	<b>435.34</b>	<b>304.42</b>	<b>392.07</b>	<b>290.55</b>	<b>289.50</b>	<b>224.98</b>	<b>200.94</b>	<b>297.03</b>	<b>415.21</b>	<b>137.41</b>			
Total Expenditures	218.19	314.53	101.72	276.64	282.55	554.23	252.18	267.36	402.36	214.94			
Income													
Group Donations	301.69	157.17	221.70	159.90	155.00	113.00	82.99	183.00	124.36	137.41			
Literature	118.75	147.25	170.37	130.65	134.50	76.98	117.95	114.03	290.85	0.00			
Other income	15.00					35.00							
<b>Totals</b>	<b>1237.94</b>	<b>1324.17</b>	<b>1401.71</b>	<b>1590.54</b>	<b>1603.40</b>	<b>1545.83</b>	<b>1192.54</b>	<b>1237.39</b>	<b>1370.24</b>	<b>1105.29</b>			
<b>Expenditures</b>													
H&I Exp.													
Helpline/Phone										128.00			
Pr Copy/Exp/Lit			63.18		63.18								
Meeting Lists													
Policy Exp													
PO Box Rental		64.00											
ASC/Sec Exp													
Reg Donation	94.22	95.00		159.64	154.20	310.48				79.00			
RCM Travel													
Literature	103.97	140.53	38.54		204.37	178.75	252.18	141.00	402.36				
Returned Check													
Website				117.00									
Activities						65.00		126.36		7.94			
Rent	20.00	15.00	Paid	Paid	15.00	Paid	Paid	15.00	PAID	PAID			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>218.19</b>	<b>314.53</b>	<b>101.72</b>	<b>276.64</b>	<b>282.55</b>	<b>554.23</b>	<b>252.18</b>	<b>282.36</b>	<b>402.36</b>	<b>214.94</b>			

## Southside Area 2020 Budget

Table 1

1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
-------------	-------------	-------------	-------------

Income					Total
Donations	\$409.05	\$409.05	\$409.06	\$409.06	\$1636.22
Literature	\$340.33	\$340.33	\$340.33	\$340.34	\$1361.33
Other	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
<b>Total</b>	<b>\$749.38</b>	<b>\$749.38</b>	<b>\$749.39</b>	<b>\$749.40</b>	<b>\$2997.55</b>

Expenses					
H & I	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$300.00
Activities	\$75.00	\$100.00	\$75.00	\$150.00	\$400.00
Lit. Shipping	\$23.05	\$53.28	\$25.02	\$27.32	\$128.67
Literature	\$414.87	\$383.12	\$393.18	\$402.36	\$1593.53
Phone	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$128.00	\$128.00
Policy	\$20.00	\$20.00	\$20.00	\$20.00	\$80.00
PR	\$63.18	\$63.18	\$126.36	\$322.28	\$575.00
Rent	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$20.00	\$65.00
Secretary	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$15.00	\$60.00
Treasurer	\$10.00	\$10.00	\$10.00	\$10.00	\$40.00
Web	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$117.00	\$0.00	\$117.00
P.O. Box	\$64.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$64.00
<b>Totals</b>	<b>\$775.10</b>	<b>\$734.58</b>	<b>\$871.56</b>	<b>\$1169.96</b>	<b>\$3551.20</b>

SOUTHSIDE AREA MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT  
 Date November 3, 2019

<b>BEGINNING BALANCE</b>		<u>\$967.88</u>	
<b>GROUP DONATIONS</b>			
A NEW BEGINNING		<u>\$42.25</u>	
A NEW HOPE			
LIVING CLEAN THE JOURNEY CONTINUES		<u>\$16.16</u>	
NEVER ALONE			
NEW ATTITUDES			
NEW BEGINNINGS			
NEW VISION			
NOT A GOOD DAY FOR RELAPSE			
RECOVERING RENEGADES			
RECOVERING VIGILANTES		<u>\$50.00</u>	
RUDE AWAKENINGS			
SOLUTIONS WITH SERENITY			
SPIRITUAL PRINCIPLES			
STEPS INTO SERENITY		<u>\$19.00</u>	
STEPS TO FREEDOM			
STEPS TO RECOVERY			
STICK AND STAY			
SURVIVORS		<u>\$10.00</u>	
<b>TOTAL GROUP DONATIONS</b>			<u>\$137.41</u>
<b>OTHER INCOME</b>			
LITERATURE		<u>\$</u>	
<b>TOTAL INCOME</b>			<u>\$1105.29</u>
<b>LESS EXPENSES</b>			
<b>CHECK #</b>	<b>PAYEE</b>		<b>AMOUNTS</b>
<u>2354</u>	<u>SUE NOVISKEY</u>		<u>\$128.00</u>
<u>2355</u>	<u>CARNA</u>		<u>\$79.00</u>
<u>2356</u>	<u>PAUL (COFFEE SUPPLIES)</u>		<u>\$7.94</u>
<u>      </u>	<u>      </u>		<u>      </u>
<u>      </u>	<u>      </u>		<u>      </u>
<u>      </u>	<u>      </u>		<u>      </u>
<b>ENDING BANK BALANCE</b>			<u>\$890.35</u>
<i>LESS PRUDENT RESERVE</i>			<u>\$800.00</u>
<b>TOTAL AVAILABLE</b>			<u>\$ 90.35</u>
<b>TOTAL AVAILABLE WITHOUT LITERATURE</b>			<u>      </u>
<b>REGIONAL DONATION</b>	<u>\$ 27.11</u>		

REVISED 4/1/18

**Subcommittee Reports:**

**Activities:**

Verbal report given by Krista: for the New Year's Eve Gala are available. Ascension has been confirmed as the venue for the event. A request for \$150.00 will be made in December for the cost of the D.J. Please bring covered dishes to the event.

**Hospitals & Institutions**

No report

**Literature**

Tiffany resigned as the Literature Chair effective immediately due to employment obligations.

**Phone line**

Verbal report given by Cameron: there were seven calls, two of which were NA related.

**Policy**

No report

**Public Relations**

Verbal report given by Cameron: I will be scheduling a phone line orientation.

**Web-server**

No report

**Home Group Reports:****A New Beginning**

Verbal report given by Dee: struggling with Home Group members and trusted servants. No donation.

**A New Hope**

Absent no report, no donation.

**Gretna NA**

Absent no report, no donation.

**Living Clean**

We meet every Tuesday night at 6pm at Trinity Episcopal Church. We have good attendance and some new Home Group members. Jeanine celebrates 14 yrs on November 19. Donation of \$21.77.

In loving service, Jeanine

**Never Alone, Never Again**

No report, no donation

**New Attitudes**

Absent no report, no donation.

**New Beginnings**

Verbal report given by Sharon: this meeting is struggling with attendance, no donation.

**New Vision**

Hello Family,

New Visions is doing well. Meeting attendance is picking up. On November 16, 2019 Home Group member Braxton will be celebrating 8 years clean and that will be a speaker meeting .On December 1, 2019 Home Group member Mike H. will be celebrating 6 years clean and that will be a speaker meeting. We have a \$40.00 donation.

In loving service,  
Mike H.

### **Not a Good Day for Relapse**

No report, no donation.

### **Recovering Renegades**

Absent no report, no donation.

### **Recovering Vigilantes**

Verbal report given by Nancy: Group 34 year celebration on November 28, bring food. Speaker meeting will begin at 7:45. No donation

### **Solutions W/Serenity**

Hello Family,

All is well. Solutions with Serenity is having the Group Anniversary on December 7. Food, fun and fellowship. All are welcome. No donation.

In loving service,  
Scottie

### **Spiritual Principles**

Absent no report, no donation.

### **Step into Serenity**

Steps into Serenity

Attendance 2 -8. This is a great meeting if you're looking for something different. We have no donation at this time we are below prudent reserve. ILS Sue N.

### **Steps To Freedom**

No report, no donation.

### **Steps to Recovery**

Attendance is good. We are in need of Home Group members and trusted servants. No donation.

In Loving Service, Barb S.

### **Stick n Stay**

No report, no donation.



**Survivors**

No report, \$15.00 donation.

**We Do Recover**

Verbal report given by Jimmy: The meeting needs support. No donation.

**Old Business**

None

**New Business**

Motion submitted by Living Clean the Journey Continues Home Group and seconded by Dee P. to add to our Activities Sub-committee events a service related event called, " Why and How WE Serve ". This motion was given to Krista to be discussed by the Activities Sub-committee.

**Elections:****Open positions:**

**Co-treasurer**, - no nominations, no volunteers

**Activities Chair**. no nominations, no volunteers – Krista will handle the New Year's Eve event as Thomas asked her to.

**Web Servant**: Barb S. nominated Amanda M for the Web-servant position, Amanda does have the willingness to serve.

There was a motion to waive the clean time requirement for this position 11 in favor, 0 opposed and 1 abstention. Motion Passed.

Barb S nominated Amanda M, Jimmy 2<sup>nd</sup> the nomination: Amanda stated her qualifications and was voted in 12/0/0.

**Next Area Service will be December 1, 2019**

**Sub committees meet at 1pm**

**Area service begins at 2pm**

**Motion to close given by:** Krista

**Motion seconded by:** Dee

Please email your reports to [bspina1238@gmail.com](mailto:bspina1238@gmail.com) so that I can add them to the minutes. All GSR's please take detailed notes so that you may have discussion within your home group.

Thank you, in loving service, Barb S.